MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS OF HENRICO COUNTY, HELD IN THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING IN THE GOVERNMENT CENTER AT PARHAM AND HUNGARY SPRING ROADS, ON THURSDAY AUGUST 25, 2022, AT 9:00 A.M., NOTICE HAVING BEEN PUBLISHED IN THE RICHMOND TIMES-DISPATCH AUGUST 8, 2022 AND AUGUST 15, 2022.

7 8

9

10

11

12

2

3

5

6

Members Present: Terone B. Green, Chair

Walter L. Johnson, Jr., Vice-Chair

Gentry Bell Terrell A. Pollard James W. Reid, Jr.

13 14 15

16

17

18

19

20

Also Present: Jean M. Moore, Assistant Director of Planning

> Benjamin Blankinship, Secretary Paul M. Gidley, County Planner R. Miguel Madrigal, County Planner

Rob Peterman, Technology Support Specialist

Kuronda Powell, Account Clerk

21 22

23 24

25

26

Mr. Green -Welcome to the August 25, 2022, Board of Zoning Appeals meeting. For those of you that can join me, would you please stand so we can say the Pledge of Allegiance?

27 28 29

[Recitation of Pledge of Allegiance]

30 31

32

Mr. Green -

Thank you.

33 34 35 36

I'm going to ask if we can just deviate from our normal agenda today for the Board because we have one member who has to leave, and this also is our annual meeting where we are going to conduct elections for officers ... so I'd like to make sure everyone participates in that process. And, I would also ask that because Mr. Pollard has to leave that, if it's ok, we would hear his case first so he could participate in it before he has to leave at 9:45.

38 39

37

40

Mr. Blankinship -

Alright.

41 42

Mr. Green -Well, based on that, I think we need to go ahead and move to

43 44

45

Mr. Blankinship -

The election of officers.

47	Mr. Green -	The election of officers.
48 49 50	Mr. Blankinship - Chair.	Alright, the floor is open to the nominations for the office of
51 52 53 54	Mr. Green - the Board of Zoning Appe	I would like to nominate Mr. Walter Johnson for Chairman of als.
55 56 57	Mr. Blankinship - further nominations? If no	Alright, Mr. Green has nominated Mr. Johnson. Are there any t, a motion to close the floor to nominations would be in order.
58 59	Mr. Pollard -	Do you have to have a second?
60	Mr. Blankinship -	No, not on the nominations.
61	Mr. Pollard -	So moved.
63 64	Mr. Blankinship -	Alright, Mr. Pollard. Is there a second?
65 66	Mr. Reid -	Second.
67 68 69 70	Mr. Blankinship - Motion to close the floor to aye.	Alright, Mr. Pollard has moved, and Mr. Reid and seconded. of further nominations for the office of Chair all in favor say
71 72	The Board -	Aye.
73 74	Mr. Blankinship -	All opposed, no. Motion passes.
75 76 77	Mr. Green - new Chair.	Mr. Walter Johnson will start at our October meeting as our
78 79	Mr. Blankinship -	October or September?
80	Mr. Green -	What is this, October?
82 83	Mr. Blankinship -	This is August.
84 85	Mr. Green -	August, September
86 87	Mr. Blankinship -	You just want one more month.
88 89 90 91 92	Mr. Green -	Nah
	Mr. Blankinship - floor is open for nominatio	Alright, Mr. Johnson has been elected by acclimation, and the ns for the office of Vice Chairman.

93 94	Mr. Johnson -	I nominate Mr. Pollard.
95 96 97 98	Mr. Blankinship - any further nominations? order.	Alright, Mr. Johnson has nominated Mr. Pollard. Are there If not, a motion to close the floor to nominations would be in
99	Mr. Bell -	So moved. I would motion that we close the floor.
101	Mr. Blankinship -	Thank you. Is there a second?
103	Mr. Green -	Second.
105 106 107	Mr. Blankinship - close the floor to nomination	Alright, Mr. Bell has moved, Mr. Green has seconded. To ons, all in favor say aye.
108	The Board -	Aye.
110 111 112	Mr. Blankinship - closed and Mr. Pollard, co	All opposed, no. The motions passes. Nominations are ngratulations, you have been elected by acclimation.
113 114	Mr. Pollard -	Thank you.
115 116 117	Mr. Blankinship - those are effective next me	Mr. Chair, I will turn the meeting back over to you. Both of onth. And, Mr. Chair, I will turn the gavel back over to you.
118	Mr. Green -	So, I don't get that extra check?
120 121	Mr. Blankinship -	Nope! Sorry.
122 123		[Laughter]
124 125 126 127 128 129	Chairmanship, every two	Not that we get one. Just so individuals out there know, we've h we think is fair that we would rotate the Chairmanship, Vicevears. We feel like it's important for everyone to have a chance be kicked by Mr. Blankinship I'll be honest with you my so I can't
130 131		[Laughter]
132 133	Mr. Blankinship -	I should switch sides after a year.
134 135		[Laughter]
136 137 138	Mr. Green - a good policy. We're foll	So I can't endure the pain of Mr. Blankenship's torture! That's owing the policy of the Board of Supervisors, as well as the

School Board and I think it's going to work well for everyone. And, it doesn't lead to anyone continuing to control everything. So, that's why we do this and I just wanted to make it clear to the public as well as those who are on WebEx watching. And, I have full confidence in our new leadership team in that they will do an excellent job in what they do. Mr. Blankinship.

Mr. Blankinship - And, we thank you for your leadership.

147 Mr. Green - Thank you, sir.

Mr. Blankinship, the other thing that I'm going to ask is that Mr. Pollard has to leave by 9:45, and he does have a case ... I would ask that we indulged him in moving his case to the front of the agenda.

Mr. Blankinship - Good morning, Mr. Chair, members of the Board, and good morning to everyone in the room with us today. I'd also like to welcome everyone who is joining us remotely on WebEx.

If you wish to observe the meeting, but you do not intend to speak, welcome and thank you for joining us. For those of you on WebEx who wish to speak, we need to know that in advance so that we can connect you at the appropriate time. So, if you are an applicant or if you have questions or comments on one of the cases, please press the chat button now. It's located in the bottom-right corner of the screen.

And when the chat window opens, please select Kuronda Powell from the list of participants and let her know your name and which case you're interested in. The chat feature is only being used to identify speakers, so please do not type questions or comments into a chat, but please send a chat to Kuronda Powell now.

So acting as secretary I will call each case and then we will ask everyone in the room who intends to speak to that case to stand and be sworn in. Then a member of the Planning Department staff will give a brief presentation, and then the applicant will speak. And, then anyone else who wishes to speak will be given the opportunity. We will hear from citizens in the room first, and then from those on WebEx. After everyone has had a chance to speak, the applicant and only the applicant will have an opportunity for rebuttal.

This meeting is being recorded so we'll ask everyone who speaks to speak directly into the microphone on the lectern in the back of the room. We'll ask you to state your name, and please spell your last name to make sure that we get it correctly in the record, and once your case is over, you are free to leave. There's no reason for you to stay for the rest of the meeting.

And with that, Mr. Chair, you have requested that we call Conditional Use Permit 2022, number 33, Ellen Byrd.

CUP2022-00033 ELLEN BYRD requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-4430 to allow short-term rental of a dwelling at 5508 Bloomingdale Avenue (Bloomingdale) (Parcel 782-745-3035) zoned R-4, One-Family Residence District (Fairfield).

Mr. Blankinship - Would everyone who intends to speak to this case please stand and be sworn in. Raise your right hand please. Do you swear the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God?

Background - Yes, I do.

Mr. Blankinship - Thank you. Mr. Madrigal.

198 Unknown voice - [Inaudible]

Mr. Blankinship - Oh ... Were you going to speak as well?

Unknown voice - Yes.

Mr. Blankinship - Please stand and raise your right hand. Do you swear the testimony you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God?

Unknown voice - I do.

Mr. Blankinship - Thank you. Mr. Madrigal.

Mr. Madrigal - Thank you, Mr. Secretary, Mr. Chair, Members of the Board. Good morning, gentlemen.

Before you is a request to allow the short-term rental of a dwelling. The subject property is located in Lakeside, approximately 300 feet northeast of the intersection of Lakeside Avenue and Dumbarton Road. The parcel is 7,500 square feet in area, and is part of the Bloomingdale subdivision, recorded in 1907. The lot is improved with a one-story, 825-square-foot ranch style home with open parking, built in 1984. Other improvements include a large shed in the rear yard and a 25-foot-wide gravel driveway in the front yard, which is visible here. The lot backs onto a 15-foot-wide alley shared with the businesses along Lakeside Avenue to the west.

The applicant acquired the property in March of last year and has made significant improvements to the home and property. The interior of the two-bedroom and one-bath house has been remodeled. Vegetative overgrowth has been removed from the rear yard; and, it's been partially enclosed with a six-foot-tall privacy fence. The applicant has installed a wood frame patio, added a large storage shed, and created a gravel parking area off the rear alley, which is visible here. She would now like to offer the home for

short-term rentals. Because the proposed rentals would be unhosted and in excess of 60 days per year, a conditional use permit is required.

231232233

234

235

236

230

The proposed use is consistent with both the zoning and Comprehensive Plan designations on the property. The size and existing improvements of the property are typical for the area. The majority of the homes do provide open parking, either in the front yard or the rear yard. The subject property has a 25-foot-wide gravel driveway in the front yard and a gravel parking area off the alley. So, parking is satisfied.

237238239

240

241

The occasional short-term rental of the home would not be incompatible with the surrounding uses, nor would it result in an overly intense use of the parcel so long as transient guests are limited to no more than four and are respectful of the property, and all our zoning requirements.

242243244

245

246

247

Although the proposed use would increase the intensity at the property, it is mitigated by its location, the amount of onsite parking, and the 3800 square-foot, private, screened rear yard. As long as the applicant adheres to the regulations and conditions of approval, staff does not anticipate any significant adverse impacts on the neighbors. Based on the facts of the case, staff recommends approval subject to the conditions.

248249

250 Mr. Green - Questions from the Board to staff?

251

252 Mr. Pollard - Just want to double check ...

253254

255
256 Mr. Pollard - Have we received any complaints?

You're muted, sir.

257

258 Mr. Madrigal - None.

Mr. Madrigal -

259

260 Mr. Pollard - Any opposition?

261

Mr. Madrigal - I haven't gotten any phone calls, haven't gotten any emails, no inquiries on this request.

264

265 ... [Inaudible] ...

266

267 Mr. Blankinship - You'll have an opportunity to speak

268

Mr. Green - Any more questions from the Board to the staff? Hearing none, we'll now hear from the applicant.

271

272 Mr. Blankinship - If you would just step around to the microphone.

273

Unknown Speaker - I really just need to ...

Mr. Blankinship tell us your name.

We need you to step around to the microphone. And, please

Ms. Byrd - Ellen Byrd. I actually don't have much to add. I thought everything was reflected really well in the report. I was just here to answer any questions and any phone calls in person ... or any questions for me or needed clarification.

Mr. Pollard - I have a question. So, you are familiar with the conditions and agree with them?

Ms. Byrd - Yes. It's all in the report, the conditions that he had.

Mr. Green - Ok, we'll now hear from anyone who is opposed and/or in support of this application.

Ms. Sims - My name is Robin Sims. S-I-M-S. I live two doors down, 5508 Bloomingdale. I've been involved with Bloomingdale for years. It's a rich street, from Spring Park all the way down to Anderson, which was known as bootleggers' lane. It's where I eat dinner. It's where kids play in the road. It's where my family enjoys holidays. My career in life was a residential property manager. So, I'm speaking completely from experience.

Personally, short-term leases are known to have a revolving door. It's what it is ... people rent ... people move out. And, while there are always stipulations, there is no way to enforce it. You have a party for Friday night, and Ms. Byrd has had several, where the whole street is blocked up with cars. All we can do is complain and by the time the complaint gets anywhere, those people have moved on. And, this could happen every single time somebody rents. It does happen. Not only does that happen ... just like in the hotels, people rent those short-term places to do things that are illegal. Distribute drugs, have parties, because by the time the Police get there or know what's going on, they've moved on to another place. It happens in hotels. That's the way it works.

The main thing I need you to understand about short-term rentals, and *Forbes Magazine* has a great article on this. Short-term leases are equivalent to gentrification. It said because a short-term lease is great for an owner. Money every night, like a hotel room ... is a lot of money. Much more than you are gonna make on a monthly rent. And, you can change it every day. Tonight I'm renting it for four-hundred, next week three-hundred. You make money hand over fist. But what happens if this is approved and you set precedence for this and a third of the people, or half of the people who have yearly leases decide to go short-term? They're gonna make a bunch of money. They may not even be in-state owners of the property, but that money is going out of state, we're suffering and all those people who needed that 12-month lease, because they can't afford to buy, they couldn't get an apartment. Where are they going to go? Short-term leases destroy neighborhoods. They push out the indigenous people who have always been there. And, those people who moved there to start their life have nowhere to go. It's something that's a rolling ball that gets bigger and bigger. While one seems ok, one leads to two, and our

county doesn't need the homelessness rate it will cause, the poverty rate it will cause. It's a negative issue all the way around. Just for myself, I don't want a revolving door next to me with people moving in and out.

324 325 326

327

328

329

330

331

332

333

334

335

336

337

338

339

322

323

Oh yes, there's parking in the rear. I didn't even think there's a gate in the rear of the house. Ok, if you park in the rear, you have to walk around the block to get in. Behind there is dumpsters to a catering place. Catering place comes in at 11:00 o'clock. We're up all night some nights between eleven and one for the catering place, then the dumpster in the morning, then you got the bar with the bikers across the street. The local businesses include a pawn shop where you can buy a gun, and a plasma bank where you can sell your blood for quick cash. This is not out on a beach. It's not somewhere you would go to a hotel resort. This is a small neighborhood. It doesn't need this kind of traffic. And, honestly, it's a small street that can't afford it. We have lots of kids in the street every day. It's like your childhood when you go out somebody screams "car" and all the kids scatter. That's our street. I love my street. I don't want it to turn into something that you're scared to go out at night. It's already busy. We're already backed up to commercial. We're on Bloomingdale & Dumbarton. Dumbarton is getting Amazon down the road. It's going to make it even busier. This is the last thing that would be positive for my street, for my county. I'd ask you not to approve it.

340 341

Excuse me, your name was again ... I'm sorry. Mr. Green -342

343 344

Mr. Blankinship -Sims.

345 346

347

Ms. Sirns, you know that the county has altered its rules to Mr. Green allow short term rentals and one of the things they require is that the owner has to live in it at least185 days a year.

348 349

Ms. Sims -That's ... so, half a year? 350

351 352

Yes. Mr. Green -

353 354

Ma'am, if you're going to speak you're going to need to be on Mr. Blankinship the microphone. 355

356 357

358

359

360

361

362

363

364

So, half the year, we got a neighbor who already doesn't respect any of us. It's been plenty of nights she's thrown soirees and all the street is blocked with cars. They're parked in people's yards. My house doesn't have a driveway. Most homes are on-street parking there. I don't know why that was misinformed but, no, we don't all have driveways there. And anything that goes on in that house blocks up all the street. Which is not a big deal, but it's a big deal if you have tenants in and out, and in and out. One tenant, they throw a party once or twice a year, but if you've got a revolving door tenant. I don't know any ramifications as a resident that I would have. If they have more than four guests ... I don't even know who lives there.

365 366 367

Have you ever called the Police, or taken pictures of ... Mr. Green -

368 369 370 371 372 373 374 375	my neighbor's going in he with people. We all get al So no, and like I said, wit	No, because it's not a neighborhood where you want to fight 12 foot between each house. I look out my window, I can see refrigerator. It's not a neighborhood where you want to argue ong. We wave to one another going up and down the street h Ms. Byrd it's once or twice, it's not something that happens onting it to somebody new every night, it very well could be.
376 377	Mr. Green - speak for or against this re	Ok, thank you. Are there any other individuals who want to equest?
378 379	Mr. Peterman -	No one on WebEx.
380 381	Mr. Blankinship -	Thank you.
382 383	Mr. Green -	Ok, Mr. Johnson. You can go ahead and answer the question
384 385	Mr. Blankinship -	Are there no other speakers?
386 387	Mr. Green -	No, no, we have a Board member asking a question.
388 389	Mr. Johnson -	You were at the podium, please go back
390 91	Mr. Blankinship -	Oh, you want to ask Ms. Sims a question?
392 393	Mr. Johnson -	Yes.
394 395	Mr. Blankinship -	Oh, I'm sorry Ms. Byrd my confusion.
396 397	Ms. Sims -	Yes, sir.
398 399	Mr. Johnson -	Where is your residence compared to the applicant?
400	Ms. Sims -	There is one house between mine, 5508.
402 403	Mr. Johnson -	You're on the same street?
404 405	Ms. Sims -	I'm one house over.
406 407 408	Mr. Johnson - neighborhood like withi	Ok. Now, has there been anything you've had in the n the last year or so?
409 410	Ms. Sims -	Anything like?
411	Mr. Johnson -	made complaints of neighbors and all?

Ms. Sims -No, normally we are able to speak to our neighbors. The neighbor across the street, the one that wants to park in his easement a certain way; and we simply talk back and forth, as a normal neighbor would do. So no, nothing to call the Police on ... nothing. It's just a quiet little neighborhood. We have a gentleman across the street who has some issues. I think he goes to the Lakeside House. Occasionally, he comes out and growls at people. You know what, he's our neighbor. We know he has some issues and we know how to overlook that. That's a simple thing. You don't start a fight over something like that. Ninety-nine percent of the time, he's good. When it's a full moon ...

424 Mr. Pollard - I'm just curious. Are you and Ms. Byrd friendly?

Ms. Sims - We are not.

428 Mr. Blankinship - You're muted again, Mr. Pollard.

430 Ms. Sims - I have not spoken to Ms. Byrd. I have waved at her several times. She's made no attempt to be friends with anybody in the neighborhood that I know.

433 Mr. Pollard - She doesn't wave back?

Ms. Sims - No, she definitely does not.

437 Mr. Pollard - I'm sorry Mr. Johnson.

439 Mr. Green - Thank you. Ms. Byrd, you can go to the podium and ...

Ms. Byrd - I just figured I'd give my two cents. I am unfamiliar with these neighbors. I have my partner who lives in Carytown. We are partially at my place, and partially at his place. So, I'm not sure what she is referencing as far as parties. I have actually not had a late night party at my house. I actually reside at my boyfriend's a lot of the time with our dog. I wanted to hit on a few other things she had mentioned.

As I'd spoken with Miguel prior, I will be in-state. I will be living with my boyfriend who lives in Carytown ... so three miles away. I don't think this would set a precedent. This is why we have to come here every time we want to do something like this So that you guys can hear us out. There is no precedent.

I kind of would like to speak to the gentrification aspect or whatever she spoke about kind of in the neighborhood. She's not wrong in the sense that this endeavor has nothing to do with enhancing the neighborhood. It has to do with me taking a large asset in my life or turning this into a large asset in my life. This is a liability for me. I purchased this property and then put \$80,000 dollars into it. That's not much more than this property was worth. So, on this particular endeavor, it's not about enhancing the neighborhood. It was in 2021 when I purchased it. The ability for me to continue to make revenue on this and to pay my mortgage through this and not have two properties hinges on the fact that I

don't upset neighbors and that people do have a positive experience in the neighborhood. It does not behoove me in any way to allow large parties of more than four people in this property. I know that this can get taken away just as easily as it was given to me. So, please know that I do understand that.

The other thing I'd like to speak on is that she mentioned something about the neighborhood and the fact that there are pawn shops, catering companies, dumpsters, mechanics. This neighborhood is loud, and I don't think there has been one time that I have made the neighborhood any louder. And I can't imagine the four people that could possibly be in this place less than 180 days a year could make it much louder than it already is. Like you mentioned, as well, I've put in a privacy fence, I've regraded the property. I, again, put \$80,000 dollars into this house. It looks nothing like it did in 2020. The only thing I can think she may be referencing is prior to me purchasing this property, I was told by her neighbor, Heather, and a few other people in the neighborhood that who lived there before did have a lot of wild parties. And, I can vouch for that by the amount of Heineken beer caps I found in the back yard when we regraded.

Mr. Blankinship - How long have you owned the property?

Ms. Byrd - I purchased it in March of 2021. Like I said, we're there often. My partner, my dog and I, but ... we're 50/50 in between both our houses.

Mr. Green - Ok.

Ms. Byrd - Hence, we're trying to off-load one.

486 Mr. Green - Any other questions from the Board to the applicant?

Mr. Johnson - Are you aware that there is 185 days you have to be at that facility as well?

Ms. Byrd - Yeah, and when I spoke with Miguel and his team prior, I did understand that. This is not I'm moving into my partner's place. This is just if I'm only there half the time ... Why would I not rent it half the time, if possible?

Mr. Johnson - And I noticed you have two car spaces so it wouldn't be a whole lot of space for people coming in.

Ms. Byrd - Yes. So I was told that I need to have a space per person. So I have two spaces in the front and there is a picture that shows the back as well, in the rear. My property line actually goes out about 20-30 feet past that rear fence. It looks like it's into the alley, but it's not. So, with cleaning up that back area, that definitely offers two more parking spots. There would not be any street parking, which I'm told is not allowed anyway. And there is a gate, I guess I should have referenced that. There is a gate that takes you from the back to the front. It can only be unlocked, currently, from the inside for safety. But I'll, obviously, put a lock on the back too.

507 Mr. Johnson - Thank you.

Mr. Green - Hearing no other questions or concerns from members of the Board, I'd like to entertain a motion.

Mr. Pollard - In hearing both residents of that neighborhood speak, Ms. Sims, she spoke to a lot of large scale issues that I'm interested to read about myself. And, some of those issues could probably be addressed with the Board of Supervisors in terms of changing how we handle them. Overall, we address these on a case by case basis. ... but I do encourage you if there are any issues that arise, do call them ... and it sounds like so far Ms. Byrd hasn't had any complaints ... [Inaudible] ... so with that, I'm move that we approve the conditional use permit, subject to the conditions recommended by staff. It is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance. It backs up to commercial property so that impact will be minimal. The lot has parking in front and on the alley. The privacy fence will mitigate noise, and then glare.

523 Mr. Green - Is there a second?

525 Mr. Johnson - I second.

Mr. Green - It has been moved by Mr. Pollard. Seconded by Mr. Johnson. Is there any discussion among the Board? Hearing none, all in favor say, aye.

The Board - Aye.

532 Mr. Green - Motion passed.

On a motion by Mr. Pollard, seconded by Mr. Johnson, the Board **approved, CUP2022-00033 ELLEN BYRD's** request for a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-4430 to allow short-term rental of a dwelling at 5508 Bloomingdale Avenue (Bloomingdale) (Parcel 782-745-3035) zoned R-4, One-Family Residence District (Fairfield). The Board approved the request subject to the following conditions:

1. This conditional use permit authorizes the short-term rental of the existing dwelling, including unhosted stays for a maximum of four guests. All other applicable regulations of the County Code remain in force.

2. This approval is subject to the County noise ordinance (Sec. 10-67 through 10-69), registry ordinance (Sec. 20-280 through 20-282), and short-term rental development standards (Sec. 24-4430).

3. To ensure adequate parking, before listing the property for short-term rental, the applicant must remove and dispose of the wood, concrete blocks, and bricks located in the rear parking area.

4. Any exterior lighting must be shielded to direct light away from adjacent property and streets.

5. Before listing the property for short-term rental, the applicant must obtain approval from the Department of Building Construction and Inspections to change the use of the building to include short-term rental. This must be accomplished no later than August 26, 2024, or this conditional use permit will expire. If the change of use request is cancelled or revoked after that date due to failure to diligently pursue building corrections, this conditional use permit will expire at that time.

Affirmative: Bell, Green, Johnson, Pollard, Reid 5
Negative: 0
Absent: 0

Mr. Blankinship - Alright, Mr. Chair, with that I'm going to ask that we move back to the top of the agenda because we did skip over ... There are two requests for deferral on this morning's agenda, and they were the two variances.

So the first is Variance 2022, number 14, Steven and Jean Himelspach.

VAR2022-00014 STEVEN AND JEAN HIMELSPACH request a variance from Section 24-6402.A.2. of the County Code to build a one-family dwelling at 9750 Osborne Turnpike (Newstead Farms) (Parcel 807-670-8807) zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Varina). The applicant has 26,569 square feet lot area and 100 feet lot width where the Code requires 30,000 square feet lot area and 150 feet lot width. The applicant requests a variance of 3,431 square feet lot area and 50 feet lot width.

Mr. Blankinship - The applicant's not here this morning. There's no one here to represent that case this morning. Mr. Himelspach did email us. He is working on alternatives and wants have a meeting with the neighbors. I understand he has not yet, but he wants to meet with the neighbors before he comes back before the Board. So, he has asked for a deferral to the September meeting.

Mr. Green - This was that case that I missed?

Mr. Blankinship - Yes. Yes, sir. It was deferred from the previous meeting.

Mr. Johnson - This is the second deferral?

Mr. Blankinship - Yes. Is there a motion?

Mr. Johnson - I motion that we defer to September.

Mr. Green - Is there a second?

598	M. D.id	Cassad	
599	Mr. Reid -	Second.	
600	Mr. Consu	Oh la thans any discussion? No discussion	All in four of
601	Mr. Green -	Oh Is there any discussion? No discussion.	. All III lavor of
602	deferring say, aye.		
603	TI Do all	A	
604	The Board -	Aye.	
605	Mar Commercial	D - f - m - 1	
606	Mr. Green -	Deferred.	
607	On a matical burble laborer	an accorded by Mr. Daid the Deard deferred o	000 VA D2022
608		on, seconded by Mr. Reid, the Board deferred c	ase VARZUZZ-
609	00014 until the September	meeting.	
610			
611	A SS: a Airea	Pall Creen Johnson Pallard Baid	E
612	Affirmative:	Bell, Green, Johnson, Pollard, Reid	5
613	Negative:		0
614	Absent:		U
615			
616	Mr. Diophinahin	And the other variance is also requesting defe	erral Variance
617	Mr. Blankinship -	And the other variance is also requesting defe	errai. Variance
618	2022, number 16, Mark Re	empe.	
619	VARSOSS COOSE MARK	DEMDE requests a variance from Section 24.6.	402 A 2 of the
620		REMPE requests a variance from Section 24-6	
621		e-family dwelling at 1647 Main Boulevard (Green	
622	,	oned R-4, One-Family Residence District (Brove feet lot area where the Code requires 6,000)	
623		e leet lot area where the Code requires 0,000 sts a variance of 750 square feet lot area.	square reer lot
624	area. The applicant reques	sis a variance of 750 square feet for area.	
625	Mr. Blankinship - Mr. Re	empe emailed us yesterday and said he had to	take his oldest
626 627		today. So, he did not want the case to be heard	
628	child to college offertiation	today. So, he did not want the case to be heard	iii iiis abscrice.
629	Mr. Green -	I know about that. Is there a motion to defer?	
630	Wir. Green -	TRIOW about that. 15 there a motion to defer.	
631	Mr. Reid -	So moved.	
632	Wil. Neid	oo moved.	
633	Mr. Green -	Is there a second?	
634	Wil. Green	to there a second.	
635	Mr. Pollard -	Second.	
636			
637	Mr. Green -	Any discussion? Variance is deferred.	
638		,	
639	On a motion by Mr. Reid.	seconded by Mr. Pollard, the Board deferred c	ase VAR2022-
640	00016 until the September	•	
641			
642			

644 845 646 647	Affirmative: Negative: Absent:	Bell, Green, Johnson, Pollard, Reid	5 0 0
648 649 650 651 652	Mr. Blankinship - had a request for the app should go quickly, too.	Alright, thank you. The first case on the agendicant to defer, but staff is recommending deferi	
653 654 655 656		nat was deferred from last month due to mise in the Homeowner's Association. It's Condition	•
657 658 659 660 661	Section 24-4406 of the Co	IWATSUBO requests a conditional use permunty Code to allow an accessory dwelling unit at Parcel 742-774-4587) zoned One-Family Reside	11725 Norwich
662 663 664 665		ere anyone here to speak to this case? Ok, I gue need to be here since they had not resolved head?	
666 67 668	Mr. Madrigal - Before you	Thank you, Mr. Secretary, Mr. Chair, Member	rs of the Board.
669 670	Mr. Green -	Is there a motion to defer?	
671 672	Mr. Blankinship -	Well that's what he's going to present.	
673 674	Mr. Madrigal -	Would you like to hear the case?	
675 676 677	Mr. Blankinship - because the applicant is r	It's our suggestion that you defer. Well, you onthere. Save us a minute.	could just defer
678 679	Mr. Green -	I move to defer.	
680 681	Mr. Bell -	Second.	
682 683	Mr. Green -	All in favor say, aye.	
684 685	The Board -	Aye.	
686 687	Mr. Green -	Is there any discussion? No discussion. All in	favor say, aye.
688	The Board -	Aye.	

Mr. Green -	Deferred.
On a motion by Mr. Gree 00032 until the September	en, seconded by Mr. Bell, the Board deferred case CUP2022- er meeting.
Affirmative: Negative: Absent:	Bell, Green, Johnson, Pollard, Reid 5 0 0
Mr. Blankinship -	Alright. Thank you very much.
Now, we do have three of Permit 2022, number 34.	cases that we do expect to hear. The first is Conditional Use
use permit pursuant to Se	RICHARDS AND HEATHER SCUDDER request a conditional action 24-4430 of the County Code to allow short-term rental of et Place (White Oak Hills) (Parcel 856-702-8114) zoned A-1, aa).
be sworn in. Raise your r	Id everyone who intends to speak to this case please stand and ight hand please. Do you swear the testimony you are about to e truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God?
Background -	I do.
Mr. Blankinship -	Are you the applicant?
Unknown Speaker -	Yes.
Mr. Blankinship -	Ok, great. Mr. Gidley.
	on WebEx who's interested in this case. Also, there were two d a third was left at the table concerning this case. Were you ? Ok, good.
Mr. Gidley - Members of the Board.	Thank you, Mr. Secretary. Good morning, Mr. Chairman and
Mr. Blankinship did mentionow.	on the letters of opposition that you have so I will go on and start
	cated in the White Oak Hills subdivision, and this is just off Elko of the county. The applicants own a 1.2-acre lot that is improved

with a 2-story, 2,104-square-foot home with four bedrooms. And, this is the street view of the home right here.

The applicant would like to offer the home for short-term rentals, which requires a conditional use permit for two reasons. First, these will be unhosted stays, so the applicants will not be there during the rental. Second, they are requesting permission to rent for over 60 days per year.

In evaluating this request, the use of the property for a one-family dwelling is consistent with the A-1 zoning of the property and the Rural Residential designation of the Comprehensive Plan. As you can see here, the neighborhood is rather spacious with acre-plus lots. There is over 130 feet between the applicant's home and the closest residence. The property also has plenty of parking available onsite, as you can see right here.

As you know, unhosted stays are more likely to have potential noise and other impacts on neighbors, as compared to hosted stays where the owner is present. This property, however, is better suited than many. As noted, it is over an acre in area and has a large, fenced-in rear yard, which you can see right here. The applicants have indicated they will normally be in the area when renting and if not, their daughter is the backup person.

In conclusion, the applicant is requesting permission for unhosted stays, potentially for more than 60 days a year. While this combination would be a concern in a denser neighborhood of smaller lots, the applicant's property appears better suited given its large size, fenced rear yard, and plenty of onsite parking. As a result, staff does not anticipate a substantial detrimental impact from this request and can recommend approval, subject to the conditions in your staff report.

This concludes my presentation. If you have any questions, I will be happy to answer them.

Mr. Green - Are there any questions from the Board to the staff? Hearing none, we'll hear from the applicant. ... Go to the podium.

770 Ms. Scudder - Hello, I'm Heather Scudder, S-C-U-D-D-E-R.

Mr. Richards - I'm Neal Richards, R-I-C-H-A-R-D-S.

Ms. Scudder - ... I wasn't sure ... Are we rebutting, or are we waiting ...?

Mr. Blankinship - No, begin with your application.

Ms. Scudder - Oh. Sorry, little nervous. I don't feel that it's going to cause any problems. We have had some short-term rentals already and we haven't had any complaints. The two neighbors that are behind ... if you can see in the picture up there

... it's right behind us. And the neighbor to the left, they both help us when we are not there ... like when the guests are there. The mail carrier helps us. We have a lot of people watching. We have six exterior cameras ... seven ... to monitor as well. So when we are not physically there, we can hear, we can talk to the guests through the cameras so that we see how many people coming in and out. And the parking is here, you can park, you can close the fence so it's not bothering our neighbors.

Mr. Richards - We put most of the cameras in the back. No cameras in the house, of course. And, two cameras in the front just to make sure everything is going ok, or if there's anything we see that's wrong, we will be on that first. Our phone buzzes. We have four Ring cameras, and Vivint, which is a security company as well. And we have smart locks. They enter in through the back door, so that no one is coming through the front. So they drive into the driveway, and they enter through that back door, right there. And, we have smart locks where we can assign them a code, or we can open from our phones. And smart thermostats, and ...

Ms. Scudder - Carbon Monoxide detectors.

Mr. Richards - Also glass shattering, things like that and I read something about a decibel meter that we stick outside.

We have a spacious lot there. We also installed, yesterday, solar panels. So, on the roof now, there's solar panels. I spent about fifty-five thousand. We put in over a hundred and twenty-thousand this year into the house because that's the house that we're going to live in eventually. We're staying in my house in Chesterfield County, so we are not that far away. And I commute every day to Virginia Beach and back, for work. So, once I'm retired, I plan on staying there.

Ms. Scudder - I mean we stay there half. This is in between, but this is our retirement home so it's an investment. I don't know if I should address the emails that you were sent?

Mr. Blankinship - Please.

Ms. Scudder - One of them ... which I spoke to my neighbor across the street, which I totally understand his concern. It's a quiet neighborhood. That's why I bought the house there because I want to live in a quiet neighborhood. We are increasing the ... We added the fence, the solar panels, we've done the garage. We've updated work, improving the home to increase the value, and not decrease it because this is our long-term ... we want to own this home. Ard then one of the letters, so you are aware, is behind us, is our old neighbor who no longer lives there. He lives down the street, Charlie Rourke. He was the one who was arrested because he was robbing the houses, our house included. And we brought the paperwork of his conviction if you need to see it. So that's one of the letters that's in the complaint. It's him.

Mr. Richards - It states that people from the city coming in and ...

005		
827 828 829	Ms. Scudder - and his name is the same	and drug addicts. It's his son that lives with him, at 4932, Charlie Rourke. His son is the drug addict Extra.
830 831	Mr. Blankinship -	Let's try to stay focused on your application.
832 833 834	Ms. Scudder -	I'm just trying to
835 836	Mr. Blankinship -	I understand your point, and its well-made, but let's move on.
837 838	Ms. Scudder -	So, there's no drug addicts staying at the house.
839 840	Mr. Richards -	No gambling.
841 842 843 844 845 846	checks on our guests. So	No, it's not a recovery home. It's just short-term rentals. And, Evolve. They manage and they do background checks, credit, it's not just Airbnb where anyone is more open we use an any. None of our guests are under 30 years old. We have like is our house.
847 848 849	Mr. Richards - And it states it as well in o	Families, we want families there. No partying, no loud noise. ur rental agreement.
850 851 852 853 854	maintenance man coming of the letters said we don't	to get the grass to grow. I have Chemlawn, and I do have a around once a week cutting grass and trimming. I know one have the grass cut, but we have a contract with a guy I have see grass is looking bad in that one picture. You can see a bald ove upon the area.
855 856 857	Mr. Green -	Ok, thank you. We'll now hear from anyone on WebEx.
858 859	Mr. Peterman -	Yes, we have Mr. Chavin on WebEx and he is ready to speak.
860 861 862	Mr. Green - against this.	Would Mr. Chavin please let us know if he is speaking for or
863 864	Mr. Peterman -	I don't think he can hear you.
865 866	Mr. Chavin -	Can you guys hear me?
867 868	Mr. Blankinship -	Yes. Yes sir, we can.
869 870 871	a few things first and foren	Excellent. First and foremost, my name is Mark Chavin. C-H- painst this measure, at this point in time. I would like to review most. Mr. Chair and Board, I would like to thank you for allowing forning, and I apologize that I could not be there in person.

I'm very familiar with Henrico County. I'm an appointee on the Virginia Real Estate Appraisal Board, and called the designated appraiser. I live at 6621 Thicket Drive, which is basically across the street. If you are looking at your image, if you go due north, my house is across Thicket Place. ... Nope ... move over to the right there with your pointer.

That's me. Excellent. So, if you will, I would be the person, probably be one of the two or three that would be most highly impacted if something adverse went wrong with short-term rentals in this house.

The second point of reference I'd like to make is, I absolutely would like to reach my hand out to thank Heather Scudder for coming by my home yesterday, chatting with me at length. She is right. She and Mr. Richardson have made significant improvements to this house over the last year to make it a much nicer property.

The reason though, that I'm speaking against this measure is if you look at White Oak Hills and White Oak Estates ... As I wrote your Board, this is a quiet large-sized neighborhood. People pride themselves on maintaining their yards, and having that friendly rural feel to the neighborhood. As a matter of fact when we were chatting yesterday on my front porch, Ms. Scudder and I, some of the neighbors walked by, people waved. People know each other. We don't have a ton of children playing in the street or things like that. But we do appreciate the idea that while White Oak Hills has that rural feel. It's convenient to the West End of Richmond, or the western end of Williamsburg for that matter. We like that feel. We don't like, if I can steal a phrase from your last case, that revolving door.

I understand that the applicants are going to use a management company, which will help them take care of what they do with this particular house. And, Mr. Richards and Ms. Scudder, I'm thrilled to know that your ultimate plan is to become my permanent neighbor. I would like that very much. I know, Ms. Scudder, if you'd pass in your red car, you'd get waves from me every day. So, I'm not here in an adverse capacity on a personal level, but I am here in an adverse capacity just out of the concept that your Board would look at something in a suburban to rural neighborhood of large estate homes, and look at the idea that it is ok to have, in my business, the appraisal business, what we call a hotel situation. In reading this, and I may be wrong, but you guys can certainly correct me if I am. The short term rental, it could be for six months or longer ..., and it could also be for a weekend. And so, as any resident would have, whether it was here or in White Oak Hills or somewhere else, I'm just a little uneasy about the idea of having something go awry, interrupting the guiet sanctity of my yard. Every night I have deer on one side and I have a ground named Harold who lives under my garden. So that's kind of my point for speaking today. I'd like to believe, and I think I do, that the Richards/Scudder family will keep this property up nicely. But, I am a little uneasy about the idea that people will be coming near where the predominance of folks who are in this neighborhood are longtime residents, much longer than my six years. I think that might change the ...

I'd like to leave you with a couple of things. It's always good to think about what you are doing and how you are going to move forward. Many, many years ago, back in the 1990's, a county musician by the name of Travis Tritt wrote a song called "Best of Intentions." Everybody has that. I believe that Mr. Richards and Ms. Scudder do have that. But I also believe that if you are going to do a three-night rental, something short like that ... that's a little scary. Because even with the best of intentions out there, things can get a little bit sideways. And, for a second, I'd like to leave the Board members with ...and even Mr. Richards and Ms. Scudder. Would any of you who live in a nice quiet neighborhood just immediately be ok with the idea that you're going to have a hoteling situation next door to you?

Again, I'd like to thank Ms. Scudder for talking to me yesterday about it and thank the board for listening to me today. And, win, lose, or draw, I hope everyone has a good day and the rest of the week. Thank you.

Mr. Green - Any other individuals on WebEx who would like to speak for or against this? ... Thank you, sir, first.

Mr. Peterman - No one else on WebEx.

Mr. Green - Fine. Would you like to rebut?

Mr. Richards - I would just like to say that since this is out in a rural area, there is not a lot of bars or anything like that. People come there, they enjoy the back yard. Families come to our Airbnb. We have, probably with the 180 days, have 50 percent occupancy. So, that's going to be about 90 days, at the most. And, all of our tenants so far have been families coming out, and they just wanted to get together. We have testimonies about going to a wedding, three families got together and stayed at a house ... especially during Covid. They didn't want to stay to stay at a hotel, so it's mostly families that's going to come out to this area. The partying and everything else, that is maybe towards the city where everything is close by. You have to drive almost two miles to get to the local grocery store. I do have the best intentions. That's why I have a lot of security cameras because we don't know what anyone's going to do. My permanent neighbors did something. So, with best intentions they could be short term or it could be your next door neighbor.

Mr. Green - Alright. Any questions from the Board to the applicant on their rebuttal?

Mr. Johnson - Yes. Do you have an idea of how many occupancies you're going to have in? How many bedrooms do you have, as well?

Ms. Scudder - We have four bedrooms, but we did six as the maximum amount of people. Is that what you are asking about ... occupancy?

Mr. Johnson - Yes, I'm asking the maximum. Ok.

964 Ms. Scudder -We don't want to do too many people because we figure six 965 ... We don't need too many people within the house. 966 967 Mr. Johnson -That's one of the reasons for each bedroom they have two 968 people. So, you couldn't have any more than that. ... And, let's see, you're saying they 969 are all are over 18, right? 970 971 Ms. Scudder -No, sir. We set a rule for 30. It was recommended. I did a lot 972 of research before we started. I've seen a lot of horror stories and they all recommend 973 over thirty. So, that's what we set our rule for. 974 975 976 Mr. Blankinship -That's interesting. 977 Alright, thank you. It's a nice facility out there. Plus, a nice Mr. Johnson -978 979 long driveway as well. 980 Ms. Scudder -Thank you. 981 982 You should come on out. Get out to the suburbs ... 983 Mr. Richards -984 ... [Laughter] ... 985 986 Mr. Johnson -Thank you. 987 988 Ms. Scudder -Is that it? 989 990 Yes, before we close this case I'd like to say something. I've Mr. Green -991 been on this Board for five years and we've been talking about short-term rentals. And 992 one thing I think we need to be cognizant of and have all of those who are looking at this 993 and weighing in on it that there is a presumption there's gonna be a lot of noise. It's always 994 a presumption. The first assumption there is a potential for a lot of noise without the 995 996 evidence to show that there is a lot of noise. And, I think that's something we all need to be cognizant of and be concerned about. While we have heard that there's a potential, 997 I've heard more "potential" for loud noise than I've heard the actuality of it being the case. 998 So, being fair and objective to individuals who want to do these short-term rentals, I think 999 we need to take that into consideration. 1000

The other thing that I'd like to say is that the county has changed. The county is allowing these short-term rentals, just like they are allowing chickens. [Inaudible background comment] ... no, the reality is they are allowing chickens to come into individuals' yards. So, we have to respond to the mandates that are coming down from the county.

I live, and I'll use myself as an example. I live in what I consider a very nice subdivision, but next door my neighbor has a pool and he has a 15, 16 year old and 12 year old, and it is not uncommon for them to have paries. The kids have parties. A couple of weeks

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005 1006

1007

1008

ago ... Did they get very, very loud? ... Without a doubt! Did the party go beyond twelve? Without a doubt! But sometimes we've got to recognize that as neighbors we've got to recognized who's giving the party, who's there ... and deal with it. Rather than me calling the Police, or going over knocking on the door saying the party's too loud, basically, my wife and I and family just drowned it out, because you want to create harmony in the neighborhood. And, fortunately, the young kid who gave the party, sent a note saying he was giving a party and if it got too loud, just let him know. He's such a nice kid that sometimes you've just got to ignore it because you want to be good neighbors.

1018 1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1034

1035

1036

1037

1038

1039

1040 1041

1042

1043

1044

1045

1046

33

So. I just wish that when individuals bring forth their concerns, relative to what "potentially" could happen, they could bring forth evidence of what happened. I am an evidence-based type of individual, and I will respond to evidence-based. I can't respond to the "potential." Because just as you may have individuals at your house doesn't preclude anyone else, even including the person that spoke, to have a large party at his or her house. And you'd be as offended by that noise or that traffic that they may be offended by you. So, I think there is a balance that we've got to create, and folks need to recognize that we just can't say no to everything. Am I a big fan of Airbnb's ... no. But as I've set on this Board, I've come to the realization that I've got to be fair, objective, and weigh it out. And I wish that when individuals come to us objecting to these that they bring us hard evidence, not what I "think" might happen, because what I think may happen is not necessarily what ... it's discriminatory in actuality to do something like that ... to say what "may" happen. It's almost to say, well it's because this particular African-American might move into a particular neighborhood. This "might" do this, or they "might" do that, or this Asian couple, or this Indian family "might" do that to the property values. We don't know. This is America. The rules we follow ... We are following the rules, and we will continue to following the rules. So, I just wanted to say that ... and all too often I have heard the negatives. So, as we move forward and when you are talking to these individuals, if you could ask them to, at least, bring us some kind of evidence to show that there is a problem ... then I, quite frankly, don't want to get caught up in what "might" happen. A lot of things "might" happen. And then, as I look at all the Airbnb's that we have approved, I've yet to see anything come back. Where all of these negative concerns individuals have about us granting that all of a sudden, it has been proven that this is problematic. We've approved a lot of these. They've gone out the door and we haven't heard a peep from them. And so, I'd like everybody to start thinking along those terms, and as I exit my chairmanship and start sitting in another seat, I just don't want to get caught up in what "might" happen. I want to know what "is" happening, and if it is not happening then please limit that to just their opinion. Because that's just an opinion, and everyone's entitled to an opinion, but in being fair to the process.

1047 1048 1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

Our staff does an excellent job of being fair to the process, and looking at all the variables. I don't think that people really recognized that a lot of time and energy is put in by our staff as professionals to look at this thing. And, they've done this long enough to know when there could potentially be some issues. And, to some degree, I think it hints at swiping at our folks and that we are not doing our due diligence and I don't appreciate that.

Hearing no other comments, I'd like to close this case and move for a vote.

Mr. Johnson - Mr. Chair, I have one thing to say that they covered a lot of evidence on having this Airbnb. What they want done and also the ages of the people there. So, I move that we approve this conditional use permit, subject to conditions recommended by the staff. It is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Ordinance. The lots in the neighborhood are large and very spacious. Also, the lot has parking for, at least, six cars and the privacy fence, which will mitigate noise and glare. I, again, move for approval.

1066 Mr. Green - Is there a second?

1068 Mr. Reid - Second.

Mr. Green - It's moved and second. Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor, aye.

The Board - Aye.

1074 (Minus Mr. Pollard)

On a motion by Mr. Johnson, seconded by Mr. Reid, the Board approved, CUP2022-00034 NEAL RICHARDS AND HEATHER SCUDDER's request for a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-4430 of the County Code to allow short-term rental of a dwelling at 4901 Thicket Place (White Oak Hills) (Parcel 856-702-8114) zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Varina). The Board approved the request subject to the following conditions:

1. This conditional use permit authorizes the short-term rental of the existing dwelling, including unhosted stays, for no more than 180 days per year. Rental may include no more than six guests at a time. All other applicable regulations of the County Code shall remain in force.

2. This approval is subject to the County noise ordinance (Sec. 10-67 through 10-69), registry ordinance (Sec. 20-280 through 20-282), and short-term rental development standards (Sec. 24-4430).

3. All short-term renters must park on-site, not on the public right-of-way.

4. Any exterior lighting must be shielded to direct light away from adjacent property and streets.

5. Before listing the property for short-term rental, the applicant must obtain approval from the Department of Building Construction and Inspections to change the use of the building to a short-term rental. This must be accomplished no later than August 26, 2024, or this conditional use permit will expire. If the building permit is cancelled or revoked after that date due to failure to diligerally pursue corrections, this conditional use permit will expire at that time.

1103			
1105	Affirmative:	Bell, Green, Johnson, Reid	4
1106	Negative:		0
1107	Absent:	Pollard	1
1108			
1109			
1110			

Passed. ... Mr. Blankinship.

Mr. Blankinship -Yes, sir. 1113

Mr. Green -

1111

1112

1114

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120 1121

1125

26 1127

1128

1129

1130

1131

1132 1133

1134

1135

1136

1137 1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144 1145

1146

1147

48

1115 The next case is Conditional Use Permit 2022, number 35, Ben Tanner.

CUP2022-00035 BEN TANNER requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-4404.A.1. of the County Code to build a detached garage in the side yard at 10001 Drouin Drive (Tuckahoe Place) (Parcel 739-737-4244) zoned R-0, One-Family Residence District (Tuckahoe)

Is there anyone in this room to speak to this case? I know Mr. Mr. Blankinship -1122 Tanner is on WebEx. There is no one in the room to speak, so Mr. Gidley, if you'd begin 1123 with your report. 1124

Thank you Mr. Secretary. Mr. Gidley -

The subject property is located in the Tuckahoe Place subdivision, which is along the southern line of River Road, right before one enters Goochland County. The applicant owns a roughly three-acre lot that contains an existing home and a detached garage. You can see the existing home, right here. And, in the yellow here, is the existing detached garage.

The home was built in 1988, and since 1991, much of the property has been encumbered by a Chesapeake Bay RPA buffer. The existing garage is located entirely within this buffer and also within a county utility easement as well. This is a picture of the garage, right here.

The applicant has indicated the existing garage is structurally unsafe, so he would like to replace it with a new metal building. While the existing garage is 576 square feet, the proposed replacement is more than twice that size, at 1,240 square feet. And, this is a picture of that building, right here. Because of the increased the environmental impact from a large building, the applicant had to obtain a waiver from the Planning Commission, which he did obtain.

The reason this case is before you today is because the garage would be located in the side yard and closer to the street than the existing building, so it does need the conditional use permit.

1149		
1150	In evaluating this request	The property is zoned R-0, One-Family Residence District.
1151		ith this designation. By applying for the use permit, the garage
1152	would be approved in the	
1153		
1154	As for impact on the surro	ounding neighborhood, Tuckahoe Place is a neighborhood of
1155	•	e are no detached structures similar to this along Drouin Drive.
1156		ble as one enters the neighborhood since Westwick Road, as
1157		in from River, forms a T-intersection right across from the
1158		the garage would be visible as one enters the road. A metal
1159		patible with nearby dwellings. The applicant has pointed out
1160	-	ding under construction in an adjacent subdivision, but this is
1161	located in the rear yard ar	nd not in the side yard where it would be much more visible.
1162		
1163	In conclusion, the applica	nt owns a dwelling on three acres. He would like to replace
1164	the existing garage with a	new structure. He obtained the required RPA waiver from the
1165	Planning Commission. T	he new structure would be over twice as large as the current
1166	structure. It would be cor	istructed of metal as noted. Staff can recommend approval of
1167		the conditions in your staff report. If the Board is concerned
1168	about the impact of a larg	e metal building being visible, a condition could certainly be
1169	added requiring the front	façade to be constructed of higher quality residential materials.
1170		
1171	This concludes my preser	ntation. If you have any questions, I will be happy to answer
1172	those. Thank you.	
1173		
1174	Mr. Reid -	Any calls from neighbors concerned about the metal?

Mr. Gidley -I had two or three calls asking about what was going on. 1176 One person indicated that they weren't real pleased with the metal building when they 1177 heard it was metal. 1178

1179 Mr. Reid -Ok. 1180

1175

1181

1184

Mr. Johnson -Another question, the current facility, are they going to move 1182 that before they bring the metal one in, or put it in the same spot? 1183

1185 Mr. Gidley -They would remove that existing detached garage due to its poor condition. ... And then the one right here would be built and so this would be the 1186 new garage and the old one would be gone. 1187 1188

Mr. Johnson -1189 Thank you. 1190

1191 Mr. Green -Do you have a picture of it? A picture coming down Westwick Road? To see what ... 1192 1193

194	Mr. Gidley - garage would be	Let's see. I think there is one in here. There it is. The new
1196 1197 1198	Mr. Green -	And this would be Westwick Road looking
1199 1200 1201	Mr. Gidley - Drive, right here. You stop you can see the driveway	Right. You're coming in off of River Road. You hit Drouin Drouin runs east and west. Westwick comes down and right here.
1202 1203 1204 1205	Mr. Reid - from Westwick.	I drove out there last week and it is highly visible coming in
1206 1207	Mr. Green -	Ok.
1208 1209	Mr. Reid -	I thought it would be set back further, but it's
1210 1211	Mr. Gidley -	It comes pretty far from where the existing one is now.
1211 1212 1213	Mr. Green -	What are your perceptions of it? Do you think it's?
1214 1215	Mr. Blankinship -	Want to hear from the applicant?
1216	Mr. Peterman -	Yes, you can hear from the applicant.
1218	Mr. Tanner -	Yes. So there's just a couple of comments I'd like to make.
1220 1221	Mr. Green - finished?	No. Sir, first, excuse me, before you start. Staff, are you
1222 1223 1224	Mr. Gidley -	Yes, sir, I am. I didn't know if Mr. Reid or anyone else was.
1225 1226 1227	Mr. Green - Ok, now we'll hear from th	Are there any questions from the Board to staff on this issue? e applicant.
1228 1229 1230	Mr. Tanner - background will be a little	I apologize. I am walking in the airport, so unfortunately the loud.
1231 1232 1233	[Several parts of the ap noise and static]	plicant's statement are unintelligible due to background
1233 1234 1235		of my direct neighbors, certainly any who have a property line complained about the metal building at all. As I mentioned

August 25, 2022

1236

1237

1238

139

earlier, there's a similar building being built just up the road from me. I'm not sure how it's

not in the same neighborhood because it is still within Drouin Hills. It may not be in the

exact like same spot as mine, but it is ... It is behind the house, but it is to the right of the

house, but we are on the street ... Mine is set back from the road a little bit.... But they

1240	are colored match to our he	ouse. So the garage will be the same color as our house now.	
1241	I'm hoping there will be minimum impact We've done quite a bit of work to ensure the		
1242	quality done a really good job of partnering with the County to make sure this building		
1243		for a very long period of time withand we plan to stay	
1244		perty value as the current building is essentially falling apart.	
1245			
1246	Mr. Green -	Are there any individuals on WebEx or in the audience to	
1247	speak for or against this pr	oposal/project?	
1248			
1249	Mr. Peterman -	No one else on WebEx.	
1250			
1251	Mr. Green -	Hearing none, I'd like to Mr. Johnson.	
1252			
1253	Mr. Johnson -	Was it mentioned that the garage is going to be the same color	
1254	as the house.		
1255			
1256	Mr. Green -	That's what he said.	
1257			
1258	Mr. Johnson -	The same colors?	
1259			
1260	Mr. Green -	That's what he said. He just said that.	
1261			
1262	Mr. Johnson -	He did?	
1263			
1264	Mr. Reid -	I would say if that was the case, I think it would work. It'll blend	
1265		provide some type of it won't just pop out. And especially if	
1266	there's no written opposition	on from neighbors, I'm with what's proposed.	
1267			
1268	Mr. Green -	Hearing no other discussion, I'm going to close the hearing to	
1269	vote on this. Do I hear a m	notion to approve or deny?	
1270	M. D		
1271	Mr. Reid -	I move that we approve the conditional use permit, subject to	
1272		ded by staff. This is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan	
1273		nere's been a garage in this location for many years and the	
1274	Planning Commission has	approved the Chesapeake Bay Exception on this project.	
1275	M. O	t- 11 10	
1276	Mr. Green -	Is there a second?	
1277	Mr. Doll	Canand	
1278	Mr. Bell -	Second.	
1279	Mr. Croop	Mr. Johnson discussion?	
1280	Mr. Green -	Mr. Johnson, discussion?	
1281	Mr. Johnson -	No discussion.	
1282 1283	IVII. JUIIIISUII -	INO GISCUSSIOTI.	
1203			

Mr. Green -

12841285

Hearing no discussion, all in favor say, aye.



The Board - (Minus Mr. Pollard)

Aye.

Mr. Green -

Passed. ... Thank you, Mr. Tanner.

On a motion by Mr. Reid, seconded by Mr. Bell, the Board **approved**, **CUP2022-00035 BEN TANNER's** request for a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-4404.A.1. of the County Code to build a detached garage in the side yard at 10001 Drouin Drive (Tuckahoe Place) (Parcel 739-737-4244) zoned R-0, One-Family Residence District (Tuckahoe). The Board approved the request subject to the following conditions:

1. This conditional use permit authorizes the replacement of the existing garage in the side yard with a new garage. All other applicable regulations of the County Code remain in force.

2. The new garage must not exceed 31 feet in width or 40 feet in depth and must be located as approved by the Planning Commission on June 9, 2022 (SUB2022-00056). Any additional improvements must comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code. Any substantial changes or additions to the design or location of the improvements will require a new conditional use permit.

3. This approval is subject to all conditions placed on the Chesapeake Bay Resource Protection Area Exception (SUB2022-00056).

4. Any exterior lighting must be shielded to direct light away from adjacent property and Drouin Drive.

5. The applicant must obtain a building permit for the proposed garage by August 26, 2024, or this conditional use permit will expire. If the building permit is cancelled or revoked after that date due to failure to diligently pursue construction, this conditional use permit will expire at that time.

Affirmative: Bell, Green, Johnson, Reid 4
Negative: 0
Absent: Pollard 1

Mr. Blankinship - Alright, the last case on this morning's agenda is Conditional Use Permit 2022, number 36, Jayne Y. Feminella.

CUP2022-00036 JAYNE Y. FEMINELLA requests a conditional use permit pursuant to Section 24-4404.A.1. of the County Code to build a detached garage in the front yard at 5201 Pickett River Drive (Pickett River Estates) (Parcel 841-666-9831) zoned A-1, Agricultural District (Varina)

1332 Mr. Blankinship - Would everyone who intends to speak to this case please 1333 stand and be sworn in. Raise your right hand please. Do you swear the testimony you 1334 are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth so help you God?

1336 Background - I do.

1338 Mr. Madrigal - Thank you, Mr. Secretary, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Board.

Before you is a request to build a detached garage in the front yard of a one-family dwelling. The subject property is part of a 10-lot subdivision. Pickett River Estates, recorded in 1973. And, it might look familiar to you. You did have a case earlier this year with a person wanting to add a swimming pool in the side yard. So it's the same neighborhood.

The property is 3.8 acres in area and sits atop the northern bluff of the James River. The lot is improved with a 1.5-story, 3,400 square-foot Cape Cod residence with open parking, and it was built in 1920. Other improvements include a 1,440-square-foot pole barn, and a 256-square-foot shed, both located in the front yard. Access to the property is by way of a 14-foot wide concrete and gravel driveway that leads to a large asphalt oval driveway at the front of the home. The majority of the parcel is relatively flat with the

oval driveway at the front of the home. The majority of the parcel is relatively flat with the exception of the front 100 feet, which slopes up, approximately 10 feet above street grade,

and the rear 80 feet, which drops off towards the James River.

The area is rural in nature and is actively farmed. The existing residence is set back approximately 360 feet from the front lot line and is consistent with the other homes on the street.

The applicant would like to build a one-story 576-square-foot garage on the eastern side of the lot, opposite the existing shed and to the rear of the barn. The proposed garage would be approximately 90 feet from the home, 28 feet from the side property line, and 120 feet from the barn. Its placement would be symmetrical with the shed and would maintain the line of sight to the river from both sides of the home. Because the structure would be located in the front yard that does require the approval of a conditional use permit.

The proposed use is consistent with both the Zoning and Comprehensive Plan designations on the property. The property is located east of Curles Neck, is surrounded by active farmland and is part of a subdivision that is nearly built out, with only two undeveloped lots remaining from the 10-lot subdivision. A one-family dwelling on a large lot is consistent with the general character of the area. The proposed two-car garage will not be out of scale or intensity considering the size of the property, proposed setbacks, and distances between homes.

The proposed garage will be 120 feet behind the existing barn and over 250 feet from the front property line. It will be screened from view by the lot's topography, the existing barn,

and tree lines along both sides of the property. The nearest neighbor is over 200 feet to the east and their view is obscured by the existing tree lines between the properties.

The proposed structure will be architecturally compatible with the existing home and the shed. Because of the size of the parcel, the existing screening, and the significant distance between on-site and adjacent buildings, staff finds no adverse impacts by this proposal.

In conclusion, the river was historically considered to be at the front of the lot and accessory structures had been placed behind the homes, this request is consistent with that pattern of development in this area. Although the garage will be placed in the front yard, there is existing screening, and it will take advantage of the existing driveway for access and will be consistent with the character of the area and architectural style of the home. Since no adverse impacts are anticipated, staff does recommend approval. That concludes my presentation. I'll be happy to answer any questions.

Mr. Green - Any questions from the Board to staff? Hearing none, we'll now hear from the applicant.

Ms. Feminella - Good morning. I'm Jane Feminella. F as in Frank E-M-I-N-E-L-L-A. I am the owner of the property in question, and I'm here to ask about the garage that I would like to have built.

As I am getting older, I would like to have my car in a garage, and was aptly stated, in the past, the river side was considered the front of the home, and all of your buildings would be as you approached the rear of the home. So that's why I would like for the garage to be built ... It's not going to be built exactly in the front of the house, it's going to be to the left ... built in the Williamsburg style and would, of course, match and be esthetically the same as the home.

Mr. Green - Are there any questions from the Board to the applicant?
Mr. Johnson.

Mr. Johnson - Where you plan on putting the facility, you have one on the opposite side as well, don't you?

1414 Ms. Feminella - Yeah. That's a shed. It would not be able to house a car.

Mr. Johnson - Ok. Also, the house is next to the river in the back as well so it kind of makes it a little bit awkward to put something back there as well, wouldn't it?

1419 Mr. Feminella - Excuse me, I did not understand the question.

1421 Mr. Johnson - Your house ... in the back is the river, right?

Ms. Feminella - Correct.

1424		
1425	Mr. Johnson -	And there is not that much room for
1426		
1427	Ms. Feminella -	Well that would obstruct the river view. All of the rooms in
1428	my home, with the exception	on of one, have a river view, and I would not want to obstruct
1429		s why the permit is required.
1430		
1431	Mr. Johnson -	You have a nice view coming in, nice house there. Other
1432	than that, that's all I need.	
1433		
1434	Mr. Green -	Is there anyone on WebEx to speak for or against this
1435	project?	
1436		
1437	Mr. Peterman -	There's no one on WebEx, sir.
1438		
1439	Mr. Green -	Hearing none, and there is no rebuttal, I'd like to close the
1440	hearing and entertain a mo	otion.
1441		
1442	Mr. Johnson -	Mr. Chair, I move that we approve the conditional use
1443	permit, subject to the cond	itions recommended by staff. And this is consistent with the
1444	Comprehensive Plan and t	he Zoning Ordinance. The existing barn would screen the
1445	proposed building from vie	w as well, and the garage will not be visible from the street or
1446	other houses as well. Agai	n, I move for approval.
1447		
1448	Mr. Green -	Is there a second?
1449		
1450	Mr. Reid -	Second.
1451		
1452	Mr. Green -	The motion has been made by Mr. Johnson, seconded by
1453	Mr. Reid. Any discussion?	All in favor say, aye.
1454		
1455	The Board -	Aye.
1456	(Minus Mr. Pollard)	
1457		
1458	Mr. Green -	All opposed It passes.
1459		
1460	,	son, seconded by Mr. Reid, the Board approved, CUP2022-
1461		LLA's request for a conditional use permit pursuant to Section
1462		y Code to build a detached garage in the front yard at 5201
1463	•	River Estates) (Parcel 841-666-9831) zoned A-1, Agricultural
1464	District (Varina). The Boar	d approved the request subject to the following conditions:
1465		
1466	1. This conditional use per	mit authorizes the placement of a garage in the front yard. All

other applicable regulations of the County Code remain in force.

2. This conditional use permit applies only to the improvements shown on the "Plan Showing Proposed Garage Addition on Lot 4 of Pickett River Estates Section A" by

Engineering Design Associates dated June 24, 2922, and the building design filed with the application. Any additional improvements must comply with the applicable regulations of the County Code. Any substantial changes or additions to the design or location of the improvements will require a new conditional use permit.

 Before beginning any clearing, grading, or other land disturbing activity, the applicant must obtain approval of an environmental compliance plan from the Department of Public Works.

4. The new construction must match the existing dwelling as nearly as practical in materials and color.

5. Any exterior lighting must be shielded to direct light away from adjacent property and streets.

6. The applicant must obtain a building permit for the proposed two-car garage by August 26, 2024, or this conditional use permit will expire. If the building permit is cancelled or revoked after that date due to failure to diligently pursue construction, this conditional use permit will expire at that time.

Affirmative:	Bell, Green, Johnson, Reid	4
Negative:		0
Absent:		1

Mr. Blankinship - Alright, Mr. Chairman, that brings us to the approval of the Minutes from the July 28th meeting.

1500 Mr. Green - Has everyone had an opportunity to read the Minutes?

1501 Are there any corrections, additions, or changes?

Mr. Johnson - Mr. Chair, I move that we approve the Minutes from the last meeting.

1506 Mr. Green - Is there a second?

Mr. Reid - Seconded.

Mr. Green - All in favor say, aye.

The Board - Aye.

(Minus Mr. Pollard)

1515 Mr. Green - Done.

	1517 1518 1519	,	on, seconded by Mr. Reid, the Board approved d of Zoning Appeals meeting.	I the minutes
	1520	A 55' 4'	Dell Corres Johnson Brid	4
	1521	Affirmative:	Bell, Green, Johnson, Reid	4
	1522	Negative:		0
	1523	Absent:		1
	1524			
	1525 1526	Mr. Blankinship -	Alright.	
	1527	Wi. Blankinsinp	7 mg/rc.	
	1528	Mr. Green -	We're over.	
	1529			
	1530	Mr. Madrigal -	I've got a couple of points, just for your infor	mation, for the
	1531	Board relative to the Air	bnb issue. It's just general information you shou	
	1532	to keep a keen eye on nev	ws surrounding this issue. Just three items, ess	entially.
	1533			
1534		About a year ago, within the	he year, there were two items that made the ne	ws. There was
	1535	one issue in Newport Bea	ach, and one here in Richmond. The Newpor	t Beach issue,
	1536		a party a lot of people were on the outside de	
	1537		nd it collapsed. The second issue was the hom	
	1538	_	irbnb and they had a party and actually the floo	
	fell into the basement and a lot of people injured. I think as a result of that and wh			
	1540		not be aware of, Airbnb did set a limit, as a corp	
	number of people that are allowed to be in a residence to 16. So, they've set the			
	1542		e other issue is that they've developed an	•
	1543		parties. So, I'm not sure how it works, but they	
	1544			
show up on the application in the process, then they will block			_	
	1546	little bit of information to ke	eep you aware of what's going on with this issu	е.
	1547	Mr. Green -	Point of clarification, the Newport Beach was 0	California?
	1548 1549	Mi. Green -	Foint of ciamication, the Newport Beach was t	JaliiOiilia !
	1550	Mr. Madrigal -	I'm sorry.	
	1551	Mi. Madrigai -	Till Solly.	
	1552	Mr. Green -	The Newport Beach issue was California?	
	1553	Wil. Of Cell	The Newport Beach looke was callerna:	
	1554	Mr. Madrigal -	Yes, sir.	
	1555		,	
	1556	Mr. Green -	And the one you said in Richmond was Richm	ond, Virginia?
1557 Not Henrico County, correct?		. 5		
	1558			
	1559	Mr. Madrigal -	Yes, that's correct. That's what I was keen to	say.

Mr. Green -

1560

1561 1562 Let the record show we are doing our job.

1563	Mr. Johnson -
64	
1565	Mr. Green -
1566	
1567	
1568	
1569	
1570	
1571	
1572	
1573	
1574	
1575	
1576	
1577	
1578	
1579	
1580	
1581	
1582	

Thank you.

Alright, thank you everybody. ... Mr. Chair, here you go

... [Laughter] ...

Mr. Terone B. Green, Chair

Mr. Benjamin W. Blankinship, Secretary